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RISK SERVICES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO MEMBERS

Your Board of Directors takes pleasure in presenting the Twenty Ninth Annual Report
of Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited ("Company”) together with the

audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. in million)

Year ended | Year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,

2024 2023
Income 712.75 649.26
Expenses 630.97 557.31
Profit Before Tax 81.77 91.95
Profit After Tax 60.80 68.23
Other Comprehensive income / (loss) (0.29) (1.45)
Total Comprehensive Income 60.51 66.78
Add: Balance b/f from Previous Year 142.88 131.10
Total 203.39 197.88
Dividend-Equity 5.00 5.00
Transfer to Retained Earnings 40.00 50.00
Profit carried to Balance Sheet 158.39 142.88
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The Company reported a total income of Rs.712.75 million, (Rs.649.26 million in the
previous year) and profit before tax of Rs.81.77 million (Rs.91.95 million in the
previous year). The Company has recorded around 10% increase in income with a
profit margin of 11.5% for the financial year.

The Company has further increased its order book with new orders amounting to
Rs.1000 million during the year. With the orders carried forward, the Company's total
order book will be around Rs.1,400 million.

During the year, the Company expanded its service offering by launching strategic
projects in hydrogen safety, BRSR reporting, and other sustainability services, and has
executed projects in respective areas.

The Company also opened new operating offices in Vadodara and Hyderabad as part
of the plan to focus on key industry clusters.
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The Company has expanded its footprint to around 100+ sites across the country,
including resources deployed at various client project sites. Around 139 construction
safety professionals and 140 logistics safety specialists are deployed at various
locations for different companies. More than 400+ assignments in process safety,
190+ in electrical and 75+ in the environment were carried out successfully during
the FY 2023-24. Throughout the year, the company also operated over 100 driver
management centres, counselling 40,000+ drivers every month.

During the reporting year, the Company deepened partnerships with key allies like
Inogen, BPC, and EIC-Dubai and strengthened ties with JV partner MS&AD. The
Company also took significant steps towards digitalization by signing agreements with
MapMylndia, Denxpert, and Crion Technologies. Collaborations with educational
institutions like the Rajiv Gandhi Institute of Petroleum Technology (RGIPT) to
introduce safety and sustainability courses. The Company was also recognized as a
certified "Training Partner for the Logistics Sector" by the Logistics Skill Council,
solidifying our market presence. The environment and sustainability division was
further strengthened through engagement and gaining additional certification from
Alliance Water Stewardship. The Company also partnered with IIM Indore to launch a
Young Leaders Program for young managers.

The Company continues to serve Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company
Limited and its clients through value-added services like Thermography, Safety Audits,
and Cargo Loss minimization studies.

The Company has around 430+ resources with a strong technical team of
multidisciplinary and certified professionals having exposure to domestic and
international markets.

The Joint Venture Partner, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited, Japan,
continues to support the Company by introducing Japanese companies in the Indian
market for risk management services and assisting in identifying potential partners in
Digital EHS front.

During the year, the Company has contributed to CSR initiatives/ projects by
undertaking 1) the cost of poison Centre specialists of Christian Medical College,
Vellore, 2) towards equipment for research projects to battery charging laboratory for
sustainable and efficient power source to Indian Institute of Technology, Madras.

PLANNING FOR 2024-25 AND THEREAFTER

The Company starts the new FY 2024-25 with a strong order book of around Rs.680
million, of which around 400 million were executable during FY 2024-25.

This solid backlog, with a portion extending into FY 2024-25, provides a springboard
for the Company's ambitious growth strategy. The plan prioritizes expanding its
customer base strategically. Sector-specific marketing campaigns will target high-
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potential regions like the Northern and Western parts of India, fostering deeper client
relationships. Additionally, leveraging existing partnerships with technology providers
will unlock new business opportunities through co-offered services.

Looking beyond customer acquisition, the Company is dedicated to continuous
expansion. The Company plans to strategically expand service offerings into emerging
areas like Ethanol, Biological Safety, Biodiversity, and Climate & Water Risk
Assessments. This expansion builds upon the Company's established expertise in
providing engineering solutions for safety, risk, and sustainability. Furthermore, the
Company recognizes the growing importance of Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) reporting. By collaborating with its Inogen partners, the Company
is focused to deepen its capabilities in net zero and zero waste to landfill consulting,
aiming to become a prominent player in India's ESG market.

The Company is known for providing Engineering solutions to address safety, risk and
sustainability. The Company plans to enter new areas such related to Ethonol,
Biological Safety related services, Biodiversity and Climate & Water Risk Assessments.
The Company will also continue to focus on building its capabilities in the areas of net
zero and zero waste to landfill consulting with its Inogen partners, and it is planning
to become active in the environmental, social, and governance (ESG) reporting market
in India.

The Company will promote a structural and forward-looking capability-building
program across all verticals, especially for middle-level young managers. Key
initiatives highlighted in the business plan, including the introduction of new services,
targeting emerging sectors, partnering with tech partners for digitalization offerings,
securing more long-term contracts, and increasing investments in financial and human
resources, will be implemented in a planned manner. Execution excellence will be
strengthened through a centralized resource pool dedicated to managing resources
and report writing.

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs.3 per equity share of Rs.10/-
each resulting in a payment of Rs.6 million towards dividend for the FY 2023-24.

An amount of Rs.40 million has been transferred to General Reserve for the FY 2023-
24.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized Capital as well
as Paid-up Capital of the Company and the same stood at Rs.20 million.
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DIRECTORS

The following appointments / reappointments were approved by the shareholders at
the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on July 21,
2023:

1. Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan (DIN: 01814413), who was liable to retire by
rotation, was re-appointed as Director;

2. Mr. Hayaki Ezaki (DIN: 10126414) was appointed as Director (liable to retire
by rotation).

During the year, the following changes occurred in the composition of Board of
Directors of the Company:

1. Mr. Shyam Chakravarthi Raman (DIN: 06847718) was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company with effect from July 22, 2023;

2. Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan (DIN: 01814413), resigned from the office of
Director with effect from closing of business hours on October 24, 2023;

3. Mr. Venugopalan Srinivasan (DIN: 10379822) was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from November 15, 2023;

4. Mr. Tsutomu Aoki (DIN: 09568125) resigned from the office of Director with
effect from closing of business hours on March 31, 2024.

The Board places on record its deep appreciation and gratitude to Mr. Sridharan
Rangarajan and Mr. Tsutomu Aoki for their guidance and valuable contributions to the
Company during their tenure.

Mr. Naoki Takeda (DIN: 09524037), retires by rotation at the ensuing annual general
meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your Directors
recommend his re-appointment.

Mr. Osamu Akine (DIN: 10531445) was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company by the Board with effect from April 01, 2024, in place of Mr. Tsutomu Aoki,
subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing AGM.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2024, are:

> Mr. NV Subba Rao, Chief Executive
» Mr. M Sundar, Company Secretary
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors meet at regular intervals with an annual calendar of meetings
circulated at the beginning of the year. The dates of the Board meetings are fixed in
advance for the full calendar year to enable maximum attendance from Directors.

During the year, five Board meetings were convened and held on the following dates:
April 27, 2023, July 21, 2023, October 25, 2023, January 29, 2024 and March 20,
2024. The intervening gap between meetings did not exceed 120 days.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The shareholders, at the twenty sixth AGM held on July 29, 2021, had re-appointed
M/s Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Regn No. 000511S) as the statutory
auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of five years commencing from the
conclusion of the twenty sixth AGM till the conclusion of thirty first AGM.
M/s Brahmayya & Co. have confirmed on satisfaction of the eligibility criteria
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Statutory Auditor,
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, against the Company by its officers
or employees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, all related party transactions that
were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in
the ordinary course of Business. There are no materially significant related party
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. Details of related party transactions are dealt with
in note 28 in notes to accounts.

SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company, Joint Venture and Associate
Company during the financial year under review in terms of Companies Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators / courts / tribunals
which would impact the going concern status and the future business operations of the

Company.
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year under review.
LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

During the year under preview, the Company had made investment in bonds of
M/s. Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Ltd amounting to Rs.10
million. The Company has not extended any loans, guarantees during the year.

Investments made as per the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
are given below:

Rs. million
Description As on March 31, Movement As on March 31,
2023 2024
Investments made 1.65 10.01 11.66
by the Company

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules framed
thereunder pertaining to maintenance of cost records as well as appointment of Cost
Auditors are not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board while considering the Business plan every year takes into account the
business risks associated with it. No risk has been identified which would threaten the
existence of the Company. The Company has in place internal control framework to
provide reasonable assurance to ensure compliance with internal policies, regulatory
matters and to safeguard reliability of financial reporting and its disclosures. The key
observations, recommendations and compliance status of the previous key audit
findings of internal auditors are presented to the Board at its quarterly meetings.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII to the Act
and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board has
approved and adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy. Various CSR
activities have been undertaken by the Company during the year under review in
accordance with the CSR Policy.

The CSR Policy is available in the website of the Company at
https://cholarisk.com/company-policies/

The CSR obligation for FY 2023-24 was Rs.12,65,348 and the Company earmarked an
amount of Rs.12,70,000 towards CSR spend, and Rs.12,70,000 was spent towards
CSR activities as approved by the Board.
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The details of the CSR activities undertaken by the Company during FY 2023-24 in the
prescribed format is annexed to this report as Annexure A.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE:

The Company has put in place a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment in line with
the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The Company has complied
with the requirements of POSH Act relating to constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee. All employees are covered under this policy. During the year under review,
the Company has complied with the provisions of the above said Act.

During the calendar year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has not received
any complaints under the policy.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

ANNUAL RETURN

The annual return of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, in
form MGT 7 is available on the website at https://cholarisk.com/wp-
content/uploads/2023/12/Final Annual Return FY 2022-23.pdf

The draft annual return of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
in form MGT 7 is available on the website at https://cholarisk.com/wp-
content/uploads/2024/07/Draft-Annual-Return FY-2023-24.pdf

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company had 431 employees as on March 31, 2024. Details of remuneration as
required to be provided pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 5(2) and Rule 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are available for inspection at the registered office
of the Company during the business hours on working days of the Company. If any
member is interested in obtaining a copy, such member may write to the Company
Secretary in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors accept the
responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of the Statement of Profit & Loss for the

SNOUeMan, o

whsunsws, %, Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

( An ISO 8001 : 2015 Certified Company )
\ “Dare House” No.2, NSC Bose Road, Chennai - 600 001, India.

T +91 (0)44 3044 5620 - 30 / F +91 (0)44 3044 5550 A member of

worw.cholaziak.com INOGEN®

[ ]
\bSl PAN No. : AABCC6610Q
e CIN : U74140TN1994PLC029257 / GSTIN : 33AABCC6610Q1ZL

Offices : Mumbali, Delhi, Gurgaon, Bangalore, Vadodara, Ahmedabad & Kuwait.



\/ > Chola @ MS

RISK SERVICES

year ended March 31, 2024 and the Balance Sheet as at that date (“financial
statements”) and confirm that:

e In the preparation of the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the Balance Sheet as at that date
(“financial statements”) applicable accounting standards have been followed;

e Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
such judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent have been made
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the
end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

e Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities. To ensure this, the Company has established internal
control systems, consistent with the size and nature of operations, subject to the
inherent limitations that should be recognized in weighing the assurance provided
by any such system of internal controls;

e The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

Proper systems are in place to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars required to be furnished in this report under Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, relating to conservation of
energy and technology absorption are not applicable for the year under review, and
hence not furnished. The foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year was at
Rs.110.00 million and Rs.42.30 million respectively.

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year under preview, there was no application/proceeding initiated or
pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016.

VALUATION FOR SETTLEMENT OR LOAN TAKEN FROM BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

During the year under preview, there was no valuation done for any settlement or any
valuation done for loan taken from bank or financial institutions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards on Meetings
of the Board of Directors (SS - 1) and General Meetings (SS - 2) issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors wish to thank the joint venture partners — Murugappa Group and Mitsui
Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited, Japan, the clients, agents and other
Government Agencies for their continued support. Your Directors also place on record
their appreciation for the unstinted support rendered by the staff of the Company as
well as for their hard work, dedication and commitment provided to the company.

On behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
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Place: Chennai Director Director
DIN: 06847718 DIN: 10379822
a\m‘“r.”.:"'a Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

o i ( An ISO 9001 : 2015 Certified Company )
‘_;? \ “Dare House” No.2, NSC Bose Road, Chennai - 600 001, India.
£ A member of

\50 gnm 2015

Sl PAN No. : AABCC6610Q
® CIN : U74140TN1994PLC029257 / GSTIN : 33AABCC6610Q1ZL

b . mlcgf:nlﬁiﬁ’zo - 30/ F +91 (0)44 3044 5550 I N OG E N

Offices : Mumbali, Delhi, Gurgaon, Bangalore, Vadodara, Ahmedabad & Kuwait.



1.

Annexure A
CHOLAMANDALAM MS RISK SERVICES LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company would be adopting a focused and a structured approach towards implementing its CSR initiatives. It has identified thematic and programme
areas to guide the design, intent and approach of its CSR initiatives. These are broad thematic areas with focus on quality service delivery and
empowerment. The programme areas are:

2.

Providing basic health care facilities to economically backward societies across geographical areas,

Improving access to education, including road safety awareness campaigns

Eradicating hunger and poverty, through livelihood generation and skill development, setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other
facilities for senior citizens

Supporting environmental and ecological balance, conservation of natural resources and similar programmes.

Rural Development

Promotion of sports through training of sportspersons,

Promoting Arts & Culture

Women Empowerment

Disaster Relief & Management

Composition of CSR Committee: Not Applicable

The web-link of €SR—eemmittee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company at
https://cholarisk.com

Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014: Not Applicable

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs. 6,32,67,388/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.12,65,348/-
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs.12,65,348/-



6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs. 12,70,000/-
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 12,70,000/-
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total
Amount
Spent for
the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
i i Unspent CSR Account as per sub VIl as per second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135
Financial section (6) of section 135 P P
Year.
(inRs.)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
12,70,000 | - - - -
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:
SI.No Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(1) (2) (3)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 12,65,348
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 12,70,000
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 4,652
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any Nil
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] 4,652




7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Amount transferred
Amount transferred to a
to Balance Amount i
; Fund as specified under Amount
Unspent CSR in .. -
. Amount Schedule VIl as per remaining to be | Deficiency,
Preceding Account Unspent CSR . R . . .
. . . Spent in the | second proviso to sub section (5) spentin if any
SI.No Financial under sub section (6) Account under . . . .
. . Financial of section 135, succeeding
Year(s) of section 135 sub section (6) of . . . .
. . Year (in Rs) if any Financial Years
(in Rs.) section 135 .
. (in Rs)
(in Rs.) Amount
. Date of Transfer
(in Rs)

1 2022-23 Nil Nil Nil Nil - Nil Nil
2 2021-22 Nil Nil Nil Nil - Nil Nil
3 2020-21 Nil Nil Nil Nil - Nil Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135: Not applicable

Place: Chennai

Date: April 26, 2024

Sd/- Sd/-
Shyam Chakravarthi Raman Venugopalan Srinivasan
Director Director
DIN: 06847718

DIN: 10379822
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHOLAMANDALAM MS RISK SERVICES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Cholamandalam MS Risk
Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
Contingent Liabilities: In relation to this, our audit response
included the following;:

We have considered this as a key audit
matter because the Company has| ¢ We have reviewed the details of

material uncertain tax positions including pending tax demands as at 3 1st March,

matters under dispute which involves 2024.

significant judgement to determine the

possible outcome of these disputes. e We have involved our internal experts
to consider legal precedence and other

Total contingent liabilities as at 31st rulings in evaluating the

March, 2024 is Rs.4,05,44,317/-. Management's position on these

uncertain tax positions.

Refer Note No.29 of financial statements

¢ We have also reviewed Company's
correspondence with tax authorities,
legal counsels, grounds of appeal filed
with appellate authorities.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
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accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when itexists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31,2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the effect of the pending legal proceedings against it in
its financial statements as mentioned in Note: 29 to the Accounts;

ii. the Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts
and the company did not have any derivative contracts.

iii. there was no amount to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. and
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(c) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) as
specified above contain any material mis-statements

v. (a) As stated in Note 34(b) to the financial statements, The final dividend proposed
in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the year is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the
year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

For Brahmayya & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.000511S
P. Babu

Partner

Membership No. 203358
UDIN: 24203358BKAIMK3081

Place: Chennai

Date: 26" April, 2024
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CHOLAMANDALAM MS RISK SERVICES LIMITED
“ANNEXURE A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT REFERRED TO IN OUR
REPORT OF EVEN DATE

i. a) 1. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

2. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets were physically verified by the
management during the year, in accordance with an annual plan of verification, which in our
opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of the Property
Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) Based on our examination of records and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the company does not own any immovable property.

d) Based on our examination of records and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

iii. Based on our examination of records and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has not made investment and not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
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a) The Company has not made any investment and not provided any loans or advances in the
nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year,
and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable.

iv.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loan to its Director(s) and has not made any investment, provided any guarantee
or security as envisaged in Section 185 and Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
respectively.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act and the relevant rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and
Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. According to the information
and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
dues of Goods and Service Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
Dues in respect of Income tax which have not been deposited on account of dispute are as
follows:

Nature of | Nature of | Amount (Rs.) Period to which the | Forum where the
the Statue | Dues amount relates dispute is pending
Income Income Rs.4.,05,44.317/- | Assessment Year | Commissioner  of
Tax Act, | Tax 2016-17 & 2017-18 Income Tax
1961 (Appeals)

viii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as income during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(viii) of the order does not arise.
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ix. a) Based on our examination of the records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations give to us and, the company has not availed any loans or other borrowings
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the order does not arise.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of the order does not
arise.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not availed any term loan during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c)
of the order does not arise.

d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the company and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any
funds during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the order does not
arise.

e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the company and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries
or associate companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the order does not
arise.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary companies. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order does not arise.

Xx. a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has neither raised during the year any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order
does not arise.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or partly or
optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the order does not arise.

xi. a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, T:491-044-28131128/38/48/58
Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014. India. E :mail@brahmayya.com | www.brahmayya.com



Brahmayya &:co-

Chartered Accountants

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the company during the year.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xii)(a), (b), (c) of the Order does not arise.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company, for the year under audit,
issued till the date of this audit report.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company during the year, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the order does not arise.

xvi. a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given to us, there are two core
investment companies within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

xvii. Based on our examination of the records and according to the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order does not arise.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
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give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. a) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

b) There is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act, pursuant to any ongoing project. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.000511S

P Rl

P.Babu

Partner

Membership No.203358

UDIN: 24203358BKAIMK3081

Place: Chennai

Date: 26" April, 2024
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CHOLAMANDALAM MS RISK SERVICES LIMITED
“ANNEXURE B” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT REFERRED IN OUR
REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies, Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cholamandalam MS
Risk Services Limited (“the Company”) as of 31%' March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or €Iror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.000511S

L -

Partner
Membership No. 203358
UDIN: 24203358BKAIMK3081

Place: Chennai

Date: 26" April, 2024
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Cholamandalam M8 Risk Services Limited
Balance Sheet as st March 31, 2024
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars Note No. 2024 2023
Rs. Ra.
L. |ASSETS
Noun-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,39,97,652 1,71,18,046
Right-of-use assets 3 16,44,613 1,38,27,571
Intangibie assets 3 21,48,461 42,433,495
Intangible assets under development 3 5,60,000 -
Capital work in progress . =
Financial agsets
(il Investments 4 1,16,58,606 16,46,300
i) E'lank Balances other than Cash and cash 2,63,00,000 6.78.00.000
equivalents
(iii)Others 13 - -
Deferred Tax assets (Net] 7 1,28,35,000 1,22,16,000
Current Tax Assets(Net} 8 7,45,95,687 5,23,45,085
Other non- current Assets 9 33,34,992 28,09,780
Total non-current assets 15,80,75,011 17,20,06,286
Current assets
Financial assets
(i} Investments in Muntal Funds 4 - 1,05,42,990
(ii)Trade receivables 10 21,21,14,116 20,13,11,697
(iii)Cash and Bank Balances 11 3,37,56,235 2,69,49,411
{ivJBank Balances other than [ii) above 12 9,05,00,000 4.20,00.000
{¥)Others 13 6,58,04,300 6,06,86,516
Other Current Assets 14 76,52,435 64,45,346
Total current wssets 40,98,27,095 34,79,35,960
Total Assets 56,79,02,106 51,99,42,246
L. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 2,00,60,000 2,00,00,000
Other squity 16 40,83,91,504 35,28,80,638
Non Current
Financial liabilities
{)) Lease liabilities 17 43,548 76,12,224
{ii} Other financial liabilities 18 2,82,745 3,34,626
Employee benefit obligaticn 20 1,32,59,308 1,51.60.367
Total non-current liabilities 44,19,77,105 39,59,87,855
Limbilities
Current labilities
Financial labilities
{il Trade payables 19 2,62,49,919 2,39,47,628
[ii) Lease liabilities 17 17,858,459 79,32,350
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 3,76,61,265 3,46,28,270
Employee benefit obligation 20 4,20,02,161 3,82,52,877
Other current liabilities 21 1,82,23,197 1,91,93,267
Total current Habilities 12,59,25,001 12,39,54,391
Total equity and Habilities 56,79,02,106 51,99,42,246
Summary of material accounting Policies 2

The notes reférred to above form an integral part of the Financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Brahmayya & Co, yj){ﬂ "'L

Chartered Accountants 5 Venugopalan
Fi egisiration No.0005113 Director

L NS )
P. Ba gﬁl\/ m T
Partrnie N V Subba Rao
Membership No.203358 Chiefl Executive

Place: Chennat M. :x:’i/:r

Date: 26-April-2024 Company Secretary

Shyam C Raman
Director

o DAY

Osamu Akine
Director




Chelamandalam MS Risk Services Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Tor the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Particolars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. Rs.
I. |Revenue from operations 22 69,14,14,729 63,01,42,600
II. |Other income 23 2,13,30,783 1,91,20,331
Hl. |Total Income (I + IIj 71,27.45.512 64,92,62,931
IV. |Empenses:
Purchase of Stock in Trade 50,627 5,25,351
Employee benefits expenss 24 40,84,37,410 33,76,03,406
Finance costs 25 10,51,882 32,06,725
Depreciation and amortization expense a 1,80,40,464 1,73,57,270
Other expenses 26 20,33,91,228 19,86,22,137
Total expenses 63,09,71.611 33.73,14.889
v, “’ “"‘ﬁ_ntnbme £ peiopal e (cxr sooip gy R gmiatand Cax 8,17,73,901 9,19,48,042
V1. |Exceptional items
VII. |Profit before extracrdinary items and tax {V - VI) $,17,73,901 9,19,48,042
VIII. |Extraordinary Iteme
1X. |Profit before tax {VI1- VIL) 8,17,73,901 9,19,48,042
X |Tax expense:
{1) Current tax [ 2,25,96,151 2,61,88,601
(2} Tex - Earlier years - -
(3} Deferred tax [Net) 7 (16,19,000) (24,70,000)
X1 |Profit for the Year from continuing operstions (IX-X) 6,07,96,750 6,82,29441
X |Profit from discontinuing operationa =
Xl |Tax expenes of discontinuing operations
Profit from Discontinuing operations {after tax) (XII-
XIV |XHI) = =
XV |(Profit for the period (XI + XIV) 6,07,96.730 6,82,29.441
XVl |Other Comprehensive Income
A i) Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 3,82,035 19,41,358
{ii) Income tax relating to ftems that will not be rectagsified
to profit or loss {96,151) {4,88,601)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loas
{ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclasaified to
profit or loss
Totul Comprehensive Income for the Fear 6,05,10,866 6,67,76,694
XVl |Earnings per equity shars: (in Fs.)
A. For Continuing Operations
|1] Basic & Diluted 27 30.26 33.39
B. For Discontinuing Operations
(1) Basic & Diluted
C. For Discontinned & Continuing Operations
(1) Basic & Diluted 30.26 33.39
Summary of material accounting Policles 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date

Partner

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firmm Remstration No.0005113

F. Balu lla

Membership No.203358

Place: Chennai
Date: 26-April-2024

oV, )

. flfu.)’f»(
] Vanugopalan-_ﬂ
Director

4
N V Bubba Rao
Chief Executive

Company Secretary

Mo

Shyam C Raman
Director
006,
Osamu Akine
Director




Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. Ra.

A.Cash Flow from Operating Activitics
Profit befors Taxation 8,17,73,901 9,19,48,042
HNon- eash adjustments and Non-Operating Items :
Provision for Bad & Doubtful debts/ Advances 1,36,51,905 90,400,822
Depreciation and Amortisation 1,80,40,964 1,73.57,270
Provision no longer required written back (78,37,259) {34,79,517)
Profit on Sale of Investiment (2,50,162) 4,67,915)
Gain on de-recognition of RoU asset {12,40,783) -
Interest income 68,98,918) 54,31,955)
Interest on bonds (5,08,198) -
[Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset 1,92,016) {6.65,460]
Finance Cost 10,51,882 32,06,725
Actuarial Gain/(loss) [2,85,884) (14,52,757)
Unrealiged {Gain)/loss {4,70,603) {8.20.625)
Oparating Proftt before working capital changes 9,68,34,329 10,%2,34,631
Changes In Working Capital ;
Increase/(Decrease) in Short term Borrowings = =
Increase/ [Decrease) in Long term employes benefits (19,01,059] 35,92,096
Increase/{Decrease] in Short term employee benefits 37,449,284 (68,66 ,069
[ncrease/ {Decrease) in Trade Payables 23,02,291 {1,85,91,891)
[ncrease/{Decrease] in Financial Liabilities 29,81,114 {3,08,93,277)
Increase/(Decrease] in Other Current Liabilities (9,70,070) 42,64,999
(Increase}/Decrease in Trade Receivables (1,61,45,462) (2,44,85,494)
(Increase] /Decrease in Short term Loans & Advancea - 2,62,53,895
(increase}/Decrease in other Financial assets 48,75,063) 4,26,83,716)
(Increase]/Decrease in other Current/Non -Current Assests {17,32,300) (7,75,760)
Total Changes in Working Capital (1,65,92,265) (9,01,85,217)
Cash Generated from Operations 8,02,42,064 1,90,49,414
[Leas)/Add : Taxes Paid (4,48,46,753) 1,72,74,180
Net cash generated from operating activities 3,563,95,311 3,63,23,594
BE. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Froceeds from sale of Fixed Assets 4,94,674 12,65,627
Purchase of Fixed Assets {1,68,18,030] {1,44,42,015)
Purchase of Non Current- Investment {1,00,12,297] -
Purchase of Current Investment = -
Proceeds from sale of Current Investment 1,07,93,152 -
Fixed Deposit {70,00,000) {4,45,90,000}
Income from Interest on Fixed Deposits 68,98,918 54,31,955
Interest on bonds 5,08,198
Net Cash flow from Investing Activities (1,51,35,383) (5,23,34,433)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of Lease liability {74,01,220) (68,63,278)
Dividends Paid {50,00,000) (50,00,000)
Finanice Cost (10,51,882) (32,06,725)
Net Cash flow {used)/ from Financing Activitles {1,34,53,102) 11,50,70,004)
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 68,06,824 13,10,80,842)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,69,49,411 5,80,30,253
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,37,56,235 2,69,49,411
Components of Cash & Cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2,112 20,929
with bank - On Current account 1,02,54,123 1,01,15,624

- On Deposits account 2,35,060,000 1,68,12,858
Total Cash 8 Cash equivalents 3,37,56,235 2,69,49,411
This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co. M W——
Chartered Accountants 8§ Venugopalafi™ Shyam C Raman

em:mon No. Q005115 Director Director

Parln N ¥ Subba Rao ()samu .Ak.lne
Membership No. 203358 Chief Exacutive Dnirector

Place: Chennai
Date; 26-Apnil-2024

M.m

Company Secretary




Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited
Statemsnt of changes in equity as at March 31, 2024

I} Equity Share Capital

Amounts
Balance as at April 1, 2022 2,00,00,000
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior periad 5
EITOTS
Changes in equity share capital during the vear -
Restated balance at the begnning of the current
reporting peried 2,00,00,000
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Changes in equity ehare capital during the current year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,00,00,000
I} Other equity
General Retained Actuarial
reserve earnings Gain/[Losa) on Total
Gratuity plan
Balance as at April 1, 2022 16,00,00,000 13,11,03,954 - 29,11,03,954
Profit for the period = 6,82,99,441 - 6,82,29,441
Other comprehensive income = {14,52,758) (14,62,758)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - = =
Total Comprehensive 1 16,00,00,000 19,93,33,395 14,52,758) 35,78,80,637
Transfer to Retained Earnings - - 14,52,758 14,52,758
Transfer From Retained Earnings 5,00,00,000 15,00,00,000) - -
Transfer from Actuarial Gains/Loss on Gratuity plan - (14,52,757} - {14,52,757)
Less : Dividend @Rs.1.25 per share (Previous year @ _
Re.2.5 per st } - (50,00,000) {50,00,000)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 21,00,00,000 14,28,80,638 - 35,28,80,638
Profit for the period . 6,07,96,750 6,07,96,750
Other comprehensive income - - 2,85,884) {2,85,884)
Changes in accounting peolicy or prier period errors - - - -
Total Comprehensive I 21,00,00,000 20,36,77,589 12.85,884) 41,38,91,504
Transfer to Retained Earnings - - 2,85,884 2,85,884
Transfer From Retained Earninps 4,00,00,004) [4,00,00,000) - =
Transfer from Actuarial Gains/Losa on Gratuity plan - (2,85,884) {2,85,884}
Less : Dividend @Rs.2 .5 per share 2 (50,00,000) 5 {50,00,000}
Balance as at March 31, 2024 28,00,00,000 15,83,91,505 - 40.83,91,304
This is the statement of changes to equity referred to in our report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co. MC M,_’—v
Chartered Accountants S Venugopalan Shyam C Raman
irm istration No.0005118 Director Director

\ 5 g A oA
¢ Bab /i.ﬂé/ W A’ 5‘ {‘(—:}ﬁ\/
Partne N V Subba Rao Osamu Akine
Membership No.203358 Chief Executive Director

Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: 26-April-2024




Notes to Financial Statements
1. Corporate Information

The financial statements of "Cholamandalam MS Risk Setvices Limited” (“the Company” ot “Chola
MS Risk”) are for the year ended 31 March 2024. The Company is an unlisted public company
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable
in India. The registered office of the Company is located at "Dare House", No.2, NSC Bose Road,
Chennai - 600001.

11 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standatds) Rules, 2015 as amended up to date.

The Company is a Joint Venture of Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited (Formetly TI
Financial Holdings Limited) and Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company Limited. Since Ind AS
is applicable to the Joint Venture partner Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited (Formetly
TI Financial Holdings Limited), Ind AS becomes applicable to the Company w.e.f financial year
ended March 31, 2019.

The financial statements have been prepared on a histotical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in INR.

2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Statements:

An asset has been classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale ot consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle;
b) Itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; ot
c) Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged ot used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting petiod

A liability has been classified as current when it satisfies any of the following critetia:

a) It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting petiod; ot

¢) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlements of the liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterpatty, tesult in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other assets and liabilities have been classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Based on the nature of activities,
the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the above purpose of
classification as current 2nd non-cutrent,
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Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ot paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market patticipants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the absence of 2 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset ot liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
econornic interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market partdcipant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use ot by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are approptiate in the citcumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fait value, maximising the use of televant obsetvable
inputs and minimising the use of unobsetvable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is direcdy or indirectly observable

c) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement 2s 2 whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above (Refer Note 32).

2.3 Use of Estimates:

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, like

prowslon for employee benefits, provision for doubtful trade receivables / advances / :

-ontingencics, useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment, revisions, provision for taxation/




2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

recognition of contract assets, etc., during and at the end of the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
matetrial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of change in value

Cash Flow Statement:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash natute and any defertals or accruals of past or future

cash receipts or payments.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

The Company has elected to continue with catrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment
under the Indian GAAP, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to Ind AS.

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes related taxes, duties, freight, insurance, etc. attributable
to the acquisition, installation of the Property, Plant and Equipment but excludes duties and
taxes that are recoverable from tax authorites.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depteciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Revenue and Other Income:

As per Ind AS 115, the Company recognizes revenue as and when, the Company satisfies the
performance obligaton by transferring a promised good or renderings the promised service to
a customet.

At contract inception, the Company assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with
a customer and identifies performance obligation as each promise to transfer to the customer.

Performance Obligations are measured as the setvices agreed with the customers for rendering
in each contract.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer as unbilled
revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which we
refer to as unearned revenues).

The change in contract asset between the reporting dates, is recognized as revenue in statement
of profit and loss account.




Revenue from service-related activity is recognized as follows:

Fixed price contract is a contract in which the contractor agrees to a fixed contract price, or a
fixed rate per unit of output/Man-days, which in some cases is subject to cost escalation clauses.

The Company enters into fixed price contracts with the Customers, Contract revenue comprises
(a) the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract; and

(b) variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable
that they will result in revenue; and they are capable of being reliably measured.

When the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs
associated with the contract shall be recognized as revenue and expenses respectively by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period.

The recognition of revenue and expenses by reference to the stage of completion of a contract
is referred to as the percentage of completion method. Under this method, contract revenue is
matched with the contract costs incurred in reaching the stage of completion, resulting in the
repotting of revenue, expenses and profit which can be attributed to the proportion of work
completed.

The stage of completion of a contract is determined by a method that measures reliably the
work performed.

Depending on the natute of the contract, the methods may include:

(a) the proportion that conttract costs incurted for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs; or (b) completion of a propottion of the contract work.

The Company follows the percentage of completion method on the basis of measurement of
work actually completed, at the Balance Sheet date, taking into account the contractual price
and revision thereto by estimating total revenue and total cost till completion of the contract
and the profit so determined propottionate to the percentage of the actual work done.

The Stage / percentage of completion is determined with reference to the confirmation given
by the Clients or/and on the billing schedule agreed with them for the value of work done

during the year.

Service fees are recognised as revenue over the petiod in which the related services are
performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and
recognised over those future petiods.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
acenmnt contractially defined terms of payment Gond and Service Tax ((GST) is nnt received
by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity
by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest Income: For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is
recognised on time proportion basis, taking into account the amount outstanding and effective
interest rate,




2.8 Government Grants, Subsidies and Export Benefits

2.9

Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants / subsidy will be
realised.

The company accrues for Export benefits undet Service Export India Scheme for the eligible

value of the grant on the net export realisation of foreign currency for the eligible years and
when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same, at the expected fair value of the grant.

Employvee Benefits: -
I. Defined Contribution Plan

a. Superannuation: The Company conttibutes a sum equivalent to 15% of the eligible employees
salary to a Superannuation Fund administered by trustees and managed by Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC). The Company has no liability for future Superannuation Fund
benefits other than its annual contribution and recognizes such contributions as an expense in
the year in which the services are rendetred.

b. Provident Fund: Contributions to Provident Fund are recognised as expense in the year in
which the services are rendered. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution
payable to the Regional Provident fund.

c. Employee State Insurance: Contributions to Employees State Insurance Scheme are
recognised as expense in the year in which the services are rendered.

II. Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity- The Company makes annual contribution to a Gratuity Fund administered by trustees
and the Contributions are invested in a Scheme with Life Insurance Cotpotation of India, as
permitted by Indian Law. The Company accounts its liability for future gratuity benefits based
on actuarial valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date, determined every year using the Projected
Unit Credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuatial gains / losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are immediately
recognised in the balance sheet with a cotresponding debit or Credit in to retained earnings
through Other Comprehensive Income in the petiod in which they occur. Re-measurements are
not re-classified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss on the eatlier of the date of the plan amendment
or curtailment, and the date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the staternent of profit and loss: -

® Service costs comprising current setvice costs, past-service costs and
e Net interest expense ot income.




ITI. Long Term Compensated Absences:

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be cartied forward beyond twelve months,
as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit Credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses ate immediately taken to the statement of profit
and loss and are not deferred. The Company ptesents the leave as a current liability in the
balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for
12 montbhs after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual
right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-
current liability.

IV. Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits include short term compensated absences which is recognized
based on the eligible leave at Credit on the Balance Sheet date, and the estimated cost is based
on the terms of the employment contract.

210 Leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the atrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
atrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an atrangement.

The lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for a building. The Company assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, ot contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (ii) the Company has substantally all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of
the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises right of use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all the lease arrangements in which it is a lease, except for
leases with a term of twelve months of less (short-tetm leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease arrangement includes the options to extend or tetminate the lease betore the end ot
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events ot changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the intetest rate implicit in the lease ot, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a cotresponding adjustment to the related right
of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exetcise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Initial recognition: Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are
accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at the average rates
that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

Measurement as at Balance Sheet date: Foreign currency monetary items of the Company
outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are restated at year end exchange rates.

Non-monetary items carried at historical cost are accounted using the exchange rates at the
dates of initial transactions.

Treatment of Exchange Differences: Exchange diffetences atising on settlement / restatement
of foreign cutrency monetaty assets and liabilities of the Company are recognised as income ot
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation and Amortisation:

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight line method over the useful life of assets
and in the manner as prescribed by Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except for the
assets which are depreciated at a higher rate based on their estimated useful life as under:

Particulars Useful Life (in years)
Furniture and Fittings * 4 years

Vehicles * 4 Years

Office Equipment * 2 Years & 4 Years
Electrical Fittings * 4 Years

Plant & Machinery * 6 Years




*For this class of assets, based on internal assessment, the management believes that the useful
life given above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these
assets. Hence, the useful life of these assets is different from the useful life as prescribed under
Part C of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013.

Computer softwate includes cost of applicadon software which is amortised over a period of 4
years.

Depreciation is provided pro-rata from the date of Capitalisation.
2.13 Taxes on Income:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in
equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year and is determined
in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit ot loss is tecognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the
deferred tax liability atises from the initial recognition of goodwill ot an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the catry forward
of unused tax Credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the catry forward of unused tax Credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised defetred tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.




Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items ate recognised in cotrelation to the underlying transacton either in OCI o
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable Company and the same taxation authority.

In the situations where the Company is entitded to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act,
1961, no defetred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which
reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company’s gross total income is subject
to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of uming differences
which reverse after the tax holiday petiod is recognized in the year in which the timing
differences originate.

214  Provisions and Contingencies:

A provision is recognized when a Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based
on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is matetial, provisions are discounted using a curtent
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that atises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company ot a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Standalone Financial
Statements.

215 [Earnings Per Share:

Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

The weighted average number of equity sharcs outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shates outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculatng diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the petiod is adjusted for the effects of all dilutve
potential equity shares.




2.16

217

Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one Company and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another company.

A. Financial Assets:

I. Initial Recognition and Measurement: All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

0. Subsequent Measurement: For putposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are
classified in three categoties:

a. Financial assets at amortised cost
b. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)

c. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost:

At Amortised Cost a ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met: -

-The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset at FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the Criteria for categotization as at amortized cost ot as FVTQOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVIPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Investments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measuted at fair value.
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company decides to classify the same eithet as at FVTOCI ot FVIPL. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-insttument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Lxpected Credit Loss (CCL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and Credit
risk exposure: -

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securites, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance The Company follows ‘simplified
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.




The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in Credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its inidal recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the Credit
tisk since initial recognition. If Credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used
to provide for impairment loss. However, if Credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL
is used. If, in a subsequent period, Credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is
no longer a significant increase in Credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL are the expected
Credit losses resulting from all possible defaunlt events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at the original EIR.

When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider: -

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably,
then the Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

¢  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other Credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix
to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.

The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every teporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized duting the period is
recognized as income / expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected
under the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an
integral part of the measutement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces
the net carrying amount. Undl the asset meets wtite-off Ctiteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. For assessing increase in Credit risk and
impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared Credit
risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in Credit tisk to be identified on a timely basis.

B. Financial Liabilities:

L Initial Recognition and Measurement All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attriburable
transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilites include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.
ii. Subsequent Measurement The measurement of financial liabilities depends on theit .
Jlassification, as described below: JAMMS By




Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurtred for the purpose of
tepurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the Criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVIPL, fair value gains /
losses attributable to changes in own Credit tisks are recognized in OCI.

These gains / losses are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulatve gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such Hability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Loans
and Botrowings After initial recognition, interest-beating loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.18 Inventories:

The Company trades telematics devices and stock-in-trade are valued at lower of weighted
average cost and estimated net realisable value. Materials and other items held for vse in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which
they will be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.19  Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial Statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the teported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilides.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that tequire a

matetial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a. Judgements:
In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has not made
any judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone
Financial Statements.

b. Estimates and Assumptions:
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a matetial adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial
Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arisi
are beyond the control of the group. /




Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occut.

L

Employee Benefits: The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-
employment leave encashment benefit and the present value of the gratity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
teviewed at each reporting date. Further details about defined benefit obligations are
given in Note 35.
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Note 3
18] Property, plant and sguipment for the Year ended March 31, 2024
Figures in Rs.
GROBS BLOCK DEFRECIATION WET BLOCK
Provided [or the
Daletions; Dafationa/
DESCRIFTION Additions* t yoar amded Opto Anmt
Asite Adjustmeonis - fas Maren 2023 | Mdjnetmests ’
April 1, 3023 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023 March 31, 2024 Warch 3T, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Owned Assots
Plant and Machinery 28,86.283 - - 28,86,280 17,70.716 3,36,368 - 21,07,084 7,79,199 11,15,567
Furniture and Fixtures 2.88.401 &2, 16,304 50,000 56,24, 725 1,76,150 13,467 50,000 4,098,617 62,15,108 112,251
Vehicles §5,11,435 27,14,751 730,817 1,14,9537 39,24,497 19,368,246 7,30,816 51,31,927 63,63, 444 55,686,938
3 |Office Equipment 60,566,101 595,071 511,616 1,52,55¢ 30,01.894 13,632,760 3,86.410 39,768,244 21,74,313 30,64,207
5 [Elecuical & Pitnes 580,061 19,5406 1 2,68,550 22.56,47, 422,219 05,790 171,262 3,560,748 19,098,724 1,58.742 |
& |Computers 1,74,80,646 42,24.821 17.15.950 1,59,98,51 1,04,00,304 46,69, 137 16,35.785 1,34,43,652 £5.55,864
Total 3,68,22,827 1,59,08,030 33,06,933 4,94,25,524 1,57,04,781 87,25,768 30,04,277 2,54,26,272 2,39,97.682 17118048
By Right of upe nssets for the Yesr ended March 31. 2024
Figures in Ra.
GROBE BLOCRK DEPRECIATION HET BLOCK
Frovided for the
Dadstiona/ Dalabiouny!
DESCRIFTION Ab st Additlona* B at A at year endod Tpta As ot
Adfrutr smt areh 3024 Adjmeiwrnts
1, 2023 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023 Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033
1 |Bulldings 322,81 443 . 2,59.36.663 63,43,620 1,84.53,012 58,60,662 2,06,25,567 46,096,007 16,44.613 1,38,27,571
Totl 3,22,81,483 - 2,59,38,863 63,42,620 1,84,53,912 68,60,662 2,06,25,567 45,98,007 16,44,613 1,38,27,671
=] ended March 31, 2034
Figures in Ba.
GROES BLOCK AMORTIZATION WET BLOCK
Frovided For the
Daletioms/ Delations/
DESCRIFTION dbthonu year endod As at
Anat Ad Adjustasents As at Aeat [meer.caded] Voo Tpto
1, 3023 March 31, 2024 1, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 30234 | March 31, 3023
1__|Software 1,37,93.818 3,50,000 1.41.43.618 55,50,029 34,45,034 = 1,19.95.357 21,48,461 42,43,495
TOTAL 1,37,93,818 3,560,000 1,41,43,818 95,50,324 24,45,034 - 1,19,95,357 21,48,461 42,43,495
[ [Grand Total | 8,28,98,128 | 162,568,030 | 2,92,45,796 | 6,99,10,362 | 4,77,00,017 | 18040464 | 2,069,844 | 4,21,19,636 | 2,77,90,736 | 3,51,89,111 |
firl} Ible assets under 31, 2024 Figares in Ra.
L | DESCRIPTION [Less than T year
[ 1 [Sofware | 3,60,000
713
GROSS BLOCK EP 100 NET BLOCK
Frovided for the
Delstions/ Deletions/
DESCRIPTION An at Additiona™ Asat Anat your ended Op ts As st
Adjustmants March Adfmatments
Aprll 1, 2022 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Auseis
Plant and Machinery 28.86.263 = - 28,86,263 14.16,782 3,533,534 - 17.70.716 11,15,567 14,69,501 |
Furniture and Fixures 1,45,684 142,717 - 2,88,401 1,55,683 30,467 - 1,76,150 1,12,251 1]
Vehicies &0, 15,608 56,77.730. 31,81,004 95,11.445 42,47,791 12,895,628 16,168,533 39,29.457 55,86,938 17,67,818
4 |Oftice Equipment 44.76,327 15.89.775 = 0,665,101 19,17,874 10,584,090 - 30,01,893 30.69.207 26,58 453
5 |Eiectrical & Fittings 580,961 - = 5,580,061 3,556,082 57,138 : 422,018 1,568,742 2,25,879
6 |Computers 126,54 507 33.92,129 5,560,891 1,74,80 646 73,15,879 35,13,233 5,159,807, 1,04,09,004 70.80.341 52,36.628
TOTAL 2,67,50,371 1,28,02,381 27,38,895 3,68,22,837 1,54,99,001 63,434,420 21,385,730 1,07,04,781 1,71,18,046 1,12,60,280
L] Right of usg sescts for the Yeor ended March 31, 2023
GROBS BLOCK DEPRECIATION HET BLOCK
Erovided for the
DESCRIPTION Asae Additsons’ [Dalstions Asat A at year anded M'Mm Tpen st
March 3032 Adpntms
Aprl 1, 2002 March 31, 2023 ril 1, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
L |Buildings 3.15,77.67% 7,083,804 = 3.22.81 463 1,11,91,038 72,632,874 = 1,84,53.912 1,38,27,571 2,03,86,641
2 |Plant and Machinery A0.47.024 - 30,47,024 - 12,68,708 1294.235]  25,62.943.00 = > 1778316
“Total 3,45,24,703 7,03,804 30,847,024 9,22.81.483 1,24,59,746 85,57,109 25,62,943 1,84,53,912 1,38,37,571 2,21,64,957
] intangible sasets for the Year ended March 31, 2023
Figures in Ra.
GROBS BLOCK ABORTIZATION NET BLOCK
Previded for the
Datetlons/ Deletioas/
DESCRIFTION Axmt Addidons* Anmt As yoar caded Opto As ut
et 5 March 2022 | Mitmest .
1, 2022 March 31, 2023 1, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
1 [Software 128,57, 058 9,35,860 = 1,37,83818 70,894,583 2455741 - 55,50.324 42.43,495 57.63,376
TOTAL 1,28,57,958 $.35,850 B 1,37,08,818 70,594,583 24,55,741 - 95,50,324 42,43,498 57,63,376
Grand Total 7,42,42,032 1.44,42.015 5785919 6.26.99.128 3.50,53.41% 1.73,57.270 47.01,673 4.77.09.017 25189111 2,0L88.613
1M Intangible assets under development for the Year ended March 31, 2023
L [ LESUAMLFTIUN JLeas than | year |
L 1| Saftware | -




Cholamandalom M2 Risk Services Limited

Notes forming part of the Aanncial gtutements for the yoar snded March 31, 2024

Asat Aa at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. Rs.
Fi fal te- Non
Hots 4
Investments- FYOCI
Equity Shares - Unquoted
Inogen Envirenmental Alliance Inc. 16,456,309 16,46,300
500,000 ghares of USD 0.5 each
O ts- Amortised coat
Investment in bonds 1,00,12,297 =
I ts- mOT t 1,16,58,606 18,46,309
Aggroguts book value 1,16,58,606 16,46,309
As at As at
Fi inl [ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Units Rs. No. of Units Rs.
Investments- FVTPL
HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - Regular Plan - Growth - - 1.37.267 36,851,800
DSP Short Term Fund - Regular Plan - Growth - - 79,376 31,31,995
ICICI Prudential 8hort Term Fund - Growth - - 73,802 37,290,195
Investmants- current - 1,05,42,990
Aggregate book value 1,00,00,000
Aa at Az at
Particulams March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ra. Ra.
Note &
Bunk Balances other then Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed Deponita with original maturity for more than 12
months * 2,63,00,000 6,78,00,000
Total other An ial ts- non 2,63,00,000 6,78,00,000
* Includes Fixed Deposits placed on lien with Banks = 93,00,000
/s ’\/: m\\\

1, &)




Cholamandalam ME Risk Bervices Limited
Notes forming purt of the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
6 Income Tax Expense
The major components of income tax expenss for the years ended 31at March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are:

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Tax:
Current income tax charge 2,25,96,151 2,61,88,601
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Daferred Tax:
Relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences {16.12,000) 24,70,000)
1 Tax Exps ported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 2,09,77,151 2,37,18,601

Other Comprehenstve Income {OCI)

Tax effect on
Re-measurercent Loss on Defined Benefit Obligations {96,151| {3.88.601)
Income Tax charged to OCI {96,151) 4,88,601)

Reconciliation of Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit multiplied by Corporate Income Tax Rate applicable
for 31st March 2024 and 21st March 2023;

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise on using the
standard rate of corporation tax in India as follows:

A ting Profit befors i tax
Purticuk March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit before Income Tax multiplied by Standard Rate of Corporate Tax in [ndia of March

31, 2024- 25.168% & March 31, 2023- 25.168% 20804 705 228520

Effects of:

Other Disallowances 3,866,295 577,118

Reversal of provision with respect to prior years - z
Net Effective Income Tax 2,08,81,000 2,92,30.000

7 Deferred tax assets
The balance comprises temparary differences attributable to:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation 15,47,539 8,957,345
Provision for employee benefits 63,10,864 67,29,428
Provision for doubtful debts 58,32,656 42,14,873
Others 1,43,942 4,14,353
Total Deferred Tax assets 1,38,35.000 1,22.16,000

Movement in deferred tax assets

Provision for employee Provision for
Lk benefits doubtful debts Othess Total
At April 1, 2023 8,57,345 67,209,425 42,134,873 4,14,353 1,22,16,000
{Charged)/ credited:
- to profit or loss 6,90,193 (4,18,564) 16,17,783 {2,70,412) 16,1%,000
At March 31, 20249 15.47.539 63,10,864 58,32,656 1,343,992 1,38,35,000
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Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

As at Asg at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Rs. Rs.,

Note 11
Cash and bank balances
Cash in Hand 2,112 20,929
Balance with banks
On current accounts 1,02,54,123 1,01,15,624
Fixed Deposits with maturity for less than 3 months* 2,35,00,000 1,68,12,858
Total Cash and Bank Balances 3,37,56,235 2,69,49,411
* Includes Fixed Deposits placed on lien with Banks 50,00,000
Note 12
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed Deposits with maturity for less than 12 months 9,05,00,000 4,20,00,000
Total Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents 9,05,00,000 4,20,00,000
* Includes Fixed Deposits placed on lien with Banks 2,85,00,000 20,00,000
Note 13
Others -Financial Asgets - Current
Unsecured and considered good
Unbilled Revenue * 4,19,51,141 3,16,19,737
SEIS claim receivables 16,98,043 16,98,043
Rent deposits 35,83,995 31,90,445
Security deposits 1,61,84,200 1,98,32,958
Employee related advances 8,78,216 20,45,431
Earnest Money Deposit 1,18,000 4,42,062
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits 13,90,714 18,57,839
Total other financial assets- current 6,58,04,309 6,06,86,516
Others -Financial Assets - Non-Current
Unsecured and considered Doubtful
Earnest Money Deposit - Doubtful 2,05,000 1,19,938
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 2,05,000 1,19,938
Security Deposit - Doubtful 19,88,040 4,59,528
Less ; Provision for Security Deposit 19,88,040 4,59,528
Total other financial assete- non-current - -
* Ageing of the total outstanding unbilled revenue is less than 6 months from the date of transaction.
Note 14
Other Current Assets
Frepaid Expenses 74,94,380 50,57,641
Advance paid to Vendors 1,58,055 13,87,705
Total other current assets 76,652,435 64,45,346
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Cholamandalam M$ Risk Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 16
Other Equity
Reserves and surplus

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

General reserve 25,00,00,000 21,00,00,000
Retained earnings 15,83,91,504 14,28,80,638
Total reserves and surplus 40,83,91,504 35,28,80,638

a) General reserve

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening balance 21,00,00,000 16,00,00,000
Additions during the year 4,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Deductions/Adjustments during the year = =
Closing balance 25,00,00,000 21,00,00,000
b) Retained earnings March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 14,28,80,638 13,11,03,955
Net profit for the period 6,07,96,750 6,82,29 441
Rems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained
eamings

;al;emeasurcmcnts of post-employment benefit obligation, net of 285,884 14,502,758
Leas: Dividends 50,00,000 50,00,000
Less: Transfer to General reserve 4,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
Clozing balance 15,83,91,504 14,28,80,638
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HNotes forming part of the financial atatements for the year sndad March 31, 2024

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Re. Ra.

Note 1T
Lease liabilities - Non Carrent

Finance Leage i 43,548 76,12,224
Taotal - Non Current 43,548 76,123,224
Leans Habilities - Currant

Finance Lease obligation 17,868,459 79,32,250
Total - Corrent 17,568,480 70,322,380
Total Lesas Habilities 18,232,007 1,55,44,574
The lollowing i3 the movement in leane linbllities during the year ended March 31, 2024:
Balance at the beginning 155,441,574 2,31,06,821
Addidone - 6,008,960
Deletions 63,11,347 4,864,081
Finence coet accrued during the period 10,50,097 18,33,218
Payment of lease liabilities 84,51.317 96,10,353
Bal at the end 18,332,007 1,55.44.574

The table below provides detalls regarding the contrmctus] maturities of lease Habilities ew at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basia

Lesa than one year 1,16,73,564 90,31,003
One to Gve years 1,896,884 79,45,247
More than five years = =
Total 1,18,60,447 1,69,76,250
Hote 18
Other Financiat Liabilitlen- Non Carrent
Advance from B 2,682,745 3,34,626
Total other Fi ial Liakllifea- Hon Current 2,82,745 3,34,626
Othar Financial Lishilkles- Current
Expenmes payable 1,66,20,857 2,02,71,134
Employee related payables 1,72,34,708 1,43,57,136
Unearned Revenue 38.05.700 0
Total Other Fi {al Liabilities- C: 3.76,61,265 346,208,270
Rote 19
Trade payubles
As at March 31 2024 Ra.
Pasticulars Less than 6 months | 6 momths to 1 year 12 Yeurs 2-3years | Moo AR Total
e
{i) MSME 19,098,486 19,0€,396
{ii) Othera 2,30,14,662 2,35,001 1,770.00 - 2,42,51 433
(i) Disputed dues - MEME -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others -
Total 2,60,13,148 2,358,001 1,770 - - 2,62,49.919
As at Blarch 31 2023 Ra.
Particulars Less then 6 months | 6 monthe to 1 year 1-2 Yeare 23yeary | Mote thand Total
(i} MBME 16,87,644 - - 16,87,644
fii) Others 2,08,5%3,352 14,038,632 - - 222 59 984
[iid) Disputed dues - MSME = = = =
fiv) Disputed dues — Othera = = = - - -
Total 2,25.41,996 14,05,632 = - E 2.39.47.628
As ut As st
Particolurs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ras. Ra.
Hote 20
Employes banefit sbligation-Non- Current
Frovigion for Leave encaahment 1.32,59.308 1.51.60,367
Total - Non t - Employes beaelit obligation 1,32,59,308 1,51,60,367
Employes beneflt obligution- C
Frovision for Incentive 2,57 82,896 2,32,72,028
Provigion for gratuity 44,03,621 44,03, 184
Provision lor Leave h 1,1B.15.644 1.15.77.665
Total - C t - Employas benefit obligat) 4,20,02,161 3,82,52,877
Mote 21
Other current lisbilities
Statutory related payables 1.82.23,187 1.91.93.267
Total Current Jlinbilities 1.82.23.197 1.21.93.267




Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ra. Rs,
Note 22
Revenue from operations
Fee Income from Services
Qverseas 11,00,87,316 11,80,89.815
Domestic 57,99,98,405 50,79,67,040
Other Operating Income - Training Services 12,77,127 34,82,826
Sale of telematics devices = =
Service income Irom telematics device 51,881 6,02,918
Total Revenue from Operations 69,14,14,729 63,01,42,600

Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers":

Disaggregation of Revenue: Figures in Rs.
Following table covers the revenue segregation in to Operating Segments and Geographical areas.
Particulars Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Total as per Profit
or Loss and
Segment
Segment Domestic Foreign Total Reporting
Consultancy Services 58,12,75,532 11,00,87,316 £9,13,62,.848 69,13,62,848
Trading activities 51,881 - 51,881 51,881
Tatal 58,13,27,413 11,00,87,316 69,14,14,729 69,14,14,729
a. Revenue recognised based on performance obligations
satisfied over a period of time 58,12,75,532 11,00,87,316 69,13,62,848 69,13,62,848
b. Revenue recognised based on performance obligations
satisfied at a point in time 51,881 = 51,881 51,881
Movement in Expected credit loss during the year
Trade receivables
covered under
Particulare Ind AS 115
2023-24 2022-23
Opening balance 1,51,67,202 96,05,896
Changes in loss allowance:
Loss allowance based on Expected credit loss 1,36,51,905 90,40,822
Bad Debts Written off = =
Addition/ (reversal) of Loss allowance - net (78,37,259) {34,79,517)
Closing balance 2,09,81,848 1,51,67,202
Contract balances:
Following table covers the movernent in contract asset balances during the year,
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Opening balance (A} 3,16,19,737 1,48,04,180
Add/(Less): Revenue recognised during the year 4,19,51,141 3,16,19,737
Add/(Less); Progress Bills raised/reversed during the year {3.16.19.737) 1.48.04.180)
Closing batance (B) 4,19,51,141 3,16,19,737




Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Reconciliation of contracted price with revenue during the year

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Opening contracted price of orders at the start of the year
(including full value of partially ted contracts) 1,14,89,52,308 78,70,80,502
Changes during the year on account of;
Add: Fresh orders received 77.02,58,672 73,18 97,073
Add: Scope Change {12,80,20,805} {4,69,32,334)
Less: Orders completed fully {66,93,10,621) {32,30,92,933)
Closing contracted price of orders on hand at the end of the 308
year {including full value of partially executed contracts) ek 1,14,89,52
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue recognised during the year £59,00,85,721 62,60,56,856
Out of orders completed during the vear 45,22,66,498 28,70,83,535
Qut of continuing orders at the end of the year (I) 23,78,19.223 33,89,73,321
Revenue recognised up to previous year (towards continuing
orders at the end of the year) {IT) 20.,84,42,410 19.66,93,017
Balance revenue to be recognised in future (III) 67,56,17,921 61,32,85,970
Total Groess work Order value 1,12,18,79,584 1,14,89,852,308

Remaining performance obligations: Following table covers the aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations and
when company expects to convert the same into revenue.

31-Mar-24
Total Likely conversion in revenue
Particulare
Up to 1 Year 1 to 2 years More than 2 years
Orders allocated to the remaining performance obligation 67,96,17,921 33,78,08,961 27,02.47,168 6,75,61,792
31-Mar-23
Total Likely conversion in revenue
Eacticslare Up to 1 Year 1 to 2 years More than 2 years
Orders allocated to the remaining performance obligation 61,32,85,970 30,66,42,985 24,53,14,388 6,13,28,597

Qualitative Disclosure
Performance Obligation

The Company recognizes revenue as and when, the Company satisfies the performance obligation by transferring a promised good or renderings the
promised service to a customer.

At contract inception, the Company assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and identifies performance obligation as each
promise to transfer to the customer.

Perforrnance Obligations are measured as the services agreed with the customers for rendering in each contract. Revenue from fixed price contracts are
recognised, where the performance obligations were satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measure or collectability of
consideration.

Significant Payment Terms:
Progressive billing as per the milestone agreed with the Customers

Significant Judgement
The Company has adopted the input method to measure the performance obligation in case of consultancy service income. This method appropriately
depicts the progress achieved by the Company in satisfying the performance obligation. The transaction price is the consideration as promised in the
contract with the customers and company recognizes revenue as and when, the Company satisfies the performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or renderings the promised service to a customer,




Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. Rs.

Note 23

Other income

Foreign Exchange Gain 25,92,837 38,38,930
Export Benefit incentives 15,04,070 -
Miscellaneous Income 32,525 4,92 381
Provision no longer required written back 78,377,259 34,79,517
Gain on de-recognition of RolJ asset 12,400,783 -
Interest income : -
Bank fixed deposits 68,98,918 54,31,955
Interest income on bonds 5,08,198 -
Interest income from IT refund - 44,69,355
Others 2,74,015 2,74,818
Investment income:

Fair valuation gain on Investment on Mutual Fund { unrealised) - 4,67,915
Profit on sale of mutual funds 2,50,162 -
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1,92,016 6,65,460
Total Other Income 2,13,30,783 1,91,20,331
Note 24

Employee benefits expense

Salaries 36,63,38,832 29,87,58,648
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,76,53,240 1,41,16,315
Gratuity & long term compensated absence 41,71,177 81,28,818
Staff welfare 2,02,74,161 1,65,99,625
Total employee benefits expense 40,84,37,410 33,76,03,406
Note 25

Finance Costs

Interest Cost to MSME = =
Interest Cost - Others 10,51,882 32,06,725
Total Finance Cost 10,51,882 32,06,725




Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
RS. Rs.
Note 26
Other expenses
Operating expenses
Recruitment Expenses 29,45,895 24,778,613
Travelling & conveyance 5,66,33,147 5,23,44,298
Communication 13,00,722 12,76,785
Consultants Outsourcing fees 9,05,24,127 10,69,79,680
Less : Reimbursement of Expenses (1,35,34,118) (1,19,13,053)
Project Related Expenses 1,24,02,694 64,96,912
15,02,72,467 15,76,63,236
Business Development Cost
Business Development and Advisory Cost 21,55,418 13,32,445
21,55,418 13,32,445
General & administration expenses
Power 15,64,706 11,93,347
Rent 27.,70,749 19,581
Rates & taxes 7,774,746 4,36,649
Repairs & maintenance 33,61,097 38,15,507
Printing & stationery 14,81,799 21,69,588
Postage Expenses 6,70,537 6,588,791
Sitting fees 2,55,000 2,70,000
Insurance 12,99,367 10,67,512
Bank Charges 19,00,680 20,33,092
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 16,13,574 -
IT Expenses 1,01,32,081 68,38,263
Legal and Professional charges 45,74,027 58,85,776
Provision for bad & doubtful debts 1,36,51,905 90,40,822
Auditor's remuneration (Details given below) 7,09,000 11,94,000
Tender Fees 3,06,750 2,61,090
Training Expenses 1,80,900 2,05,498
Provision for Export Benefit Incentive - 15,04,070
Membership and Subscription Fees 44,24, 704 14,37,252
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 12,70,000 10,63,000
ISO Audit charges - 4,155,000
Miscellaneous expenses 21,721 87,620
5,09,63,343 3,96,26,456

Total other expenses

20,33,91,228

19,86,22,137

Payment to Auditor

Audit fee{excluding GST)

Tax audit fee{excluding GST)
Certification Fees {excluding GST)
Income tax appeal fee
Reimbursement of expenses

5,28,000
66,000
1,00,000

15,000

5,28,000

66,000
1,00,000
5,00,000




Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rs. Rs.

Note 27

Earnings per share

Net profit after taxes 6,05,10,866 6,67,76,684
Equity shares outstanding as at the year end (in Nos.) 20,00,000 20,00,000
Nominal value per equity share 10 10
Weighted average number of shares 20,00,000 20,00,000
Earnings per share - Basic 30.26 33.39
Eamings per share - Diluted 30.26 33.39




Cholamandalam M3 Risk Ssrvicas Limdted
Noten forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rote 23

List of Relsted parties

a. Companies having aub ul i o voting vights:

1. Chol dalam Fi jal Holdinga Ltd {Formerly known aa Ti Financial Holdings Ltd)
2. Mitsui Surni h C Limited, Japan

b. Companies under same menegement:

1. Chol dalam ME G ! Comp Lid

2. Chol Jalam 1 and Finance Company Limited

¢, Key Managerinl Personnel:

1. N.V. Subba Rao - Designation: Chiel Executive

De: of Transactions:
20233-24 2023-29
Trunsactions Ralated Party
[Ra.} (]
Rendering of Servicea Cholamandalam M3 General Insurancs Co Ltd 251,085,016 1,78,37,700
[Income) Cheol dalam [ and Finance Compeny Limited 4,25,000 2,12,500
Availment of Services Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co Lid 74,56,585 8,358,347
[Expenss) Chal dalam [ and Finance Company Limited - -
Reimbureement - Emploves
e Cholamandalam MS Generat Ingurance Co Ltd 16,14 024 -
Sitting Feea A) Mitaui i I ¢ Comp Limited 2,10,000 2,10,000
Dividend Pasd A} Cheol dalam Fi ial Holdi Limited 24, 74,948 24,74,948
{F: iy T1 Fi ial Holdi Limited)
B Miteui Sumi b Comp L 25,00,000 25,00,000
R y of Exp Chotl dalam M3 G L Co Lud 2,93,465 582,046
Receivables / Payabl Chol dalam M2 General Insurance Co Ltd 71,72,238/- (Dr)| 41,70,993/- (Dr)
Receivables / Payabi Chol dalam Fj ciel Holdings Limited 2,50,7504- (Dr.) 2,580,750/~ {Dr.)
Recelvablea / Pavabi Chol dalam Investment and Finance Company Limited 1,0%,20,3485/- Dr.} -
Remuneration to Key Al N V Bubba Rao
Managerial Peraonnel Designation: Chief Executive 1,93,06,377 1.75,34,573
Note 29
Contingent Liability
As at March 31, As at March 31
Asscasment ¥ Particulars * v
ol 2024 2029
Contested Liabiliies Not provided for in respect of Tax mattera
| perrding before Appellate Aathoritien
Income Tox Matters:
. In respect of disall of E ts made |
2016-17 Business F iom ard Refora] s i 2,62,67,027 2,62,67,027
A In respect of disall of te made i
2017-18 e tion and Referral charges paid 1,42,77,290 1,42,77,290
The Company i on appeal againat the disalk of ta made da B Pr and Referral charges paid in accord. with the Preferred Partner Tie up Agreement entered into.
For AY 2015-16 , the assessment was ordered in favour of the at CIT appeals and the T ia expecting the same opinion in the subasquent year as well and confident of
winning the appeal before the appellate forum.
Nate 30
N . As at March 31, As at Mareh 31,
Capital € Py D o
p 2024 2023
Software I|Happay Travel software £ 00,000 -
Note 31
Ratios F March 31, 3034 March 31, 2033 R for varian
a) Current ratio Currenit Assets / Current lisbilities .25 2.8] |NA*
g q q ‘The reduction is on account of de-recognition of lease Hability
b) Debi-Equity ratio Total Debts/ Total Equity 0.00 0.02 ; o jon of a | 1 isea
<} Return on equity ratio Profit after tax/ Shareholder's Eanity 3.04 3.41 |Na=
d} Trade receivables turnover {Total Trade recelvables *265 Days/ Revenus from Operalions 112 117 |NA®
¢ rade payables MMOVET 7o Trade Payables *365 Deys/ Total Expenses a7 44 [Has
fi Net capital turnover tatio  [Met annual sales / Workine capital 2.44 281 [HA"
g] Net profit ratio Profit befare tax,/Revenue from Cperationy 12% 15% | NA*
h) Return ital B
el’nplm ke Profit after tax/Total Capital employed 14% 15% | Na
* The reason for Variance s not requireel to be given for any change in the ratio by less than 25% as d to the p ding year.




Cholamendalam MS Risk Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financia! statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 32
Fair value measurements
Fi ial instruments by category
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Level FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVIPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial ansets
Investments
- Equity instruments 3 16,46,309 - 1,05,42,990 16,46,309 -
- Debt instruments 3 - 1,00,12,297
Trade receivables 3 - 21,21,14,116 = - 20,13,11,697
Cash and cash equivalents - 3,37,56,235 - - 2,69,49.411
Bank Balances other than (i) above - 11,68,00,000 - - 10,98,00,000
Loans 3 - - = = -
Others 3 - 6,58,04,306 - = 6,06,86,516
Total financinl sssets 16,46,309 | 43.84.86,957 1,08,42,990 16,46,300 39,87 47,624
Financial Habitities
Trade payables 3 2,62,49.919 - - 2,39,47,628
Lease liabilities 3 - 18,32,007 - = 1,55,44,574
Other financial liabilities 3 - 3,79,44,010 - - 3,49,62,896
Total financial linbilities - 6,60,25,936 - - 7.44,55,008
(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured
at fair value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemneath the table,

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual
funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments fincluding bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing
price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active martet (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in leve] 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3,

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

The company’s policy is to recognise tranafers in and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period,

{ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair valne (Level 3)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments at level 3 is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
{iii} Valuation Proceas

The finance department of the Company includes the team that perform valuation of financial assets and liabilities. This term reports to the CFO and the
Beard on the valuaton process and results.

liv) Fair value of financial assete and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash equivalents, other financial assets
{current) and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for other financial assets (non current] were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a risk adjusted discount rate. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy since significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are cbservable

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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and ek jeontd. |
mm a3
tal risk «
a. Govermance frumework
The primary shjectve of the Company's risk and [i ial [i ri 13 te: protect the Company’s sharehelders from eventa that hinder the bl achi. of O dal
performance objectives, including failing to exploit opp e ](ey 5 gnises the critical importance of having efficient and efle risk in placs,
The board of direclors mests regularly to any gulatory and erganisational of the F and [rame policies that define the Company's identilication of risk and
its interpretation, limit its structure to enwre the appropriate qun]il:y and diversification of asseia to align to the corporats goala, and apeci& reporting requirements.
(A} Credit rak
Credit rsk arfsea from cash and cash equivalents, i carried at d cost and dep with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exp > ireludi

outstanding receivables,

T} Creeclit risk managemant

Cradit riak ia the risk that one party to a financial inatrument will cause a financial loas to the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk encompassed both the direct risk of default and
the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration Haks.

Fer all (nanclal assets of the t and
each clasy of nancial m&umuwmdlﬁermtdmnmm

credit risk based on internal credit assessment of the parties. [nternal credit assessment is performed on a group basis for

‘The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has besn a significant increase i credit risk on an ongeing basis throughout each reporting peried.
TDMHWheﬂlerthmhasdgniﬂcammemaaeh&mdnmkﬂnwmpanymmpmst.herukofadefaultoccumngont}uamtasntﬂ'bereporungdatemmﬂ‘iel‘iaknfdel'n\lltasltﬂledlmofhdﬂal
Ifian, 1t id skl ble and

PP for ne-looking

i} Truda receivablan:
Customer credit risk is maneged by each business unit under I.hc guidnnoe of the eredit policy, prooedures and ounlrol yelating 1o cumomer credit fiak management. Credit quality of a customer in

asoeawdbmdmﬁnancmlpmlhon past performance, busk / clith merket rep P etc. Bassd on thia evaluabon, credit limit and credit terms are decided.
P an are regularly iored and d through credit lock and release.

The impairment is hased on sxpected crdit loss model idering the historical data and fi ia! peaition af indivi at each rep g period. The maximum exposure to credit risi at the

reporting date le the camying value of each clase of financial assets disclossd below, ‘meCompanydoesmeoldauyco]JamraInsecuﬂgf The C: has low of riak with respsct to

trade receivables, as its customers are widely spread and belong te diversified industrica and operate in largely Indspend

(i) Fioancial Instruments and ¢aah depoaits:

Credit riak from balanicss with banks and fi ial ingtitut: in d by the C v's treasury department in d with the Company's polfcy. of surplua funds are made for

short-term in liquid Aimda of rated mutual funds and depasits with banks. The Investment limita are set out per Mutual fund and the value of total fized deposit in Banke to minimise the concentration
tisk. nvaatrnents are reviewsd by the Board of Directors on a quarterly basais.

Macroeconomic information (euch as regulatory changes, market interast cate or growth rates) s incorporated as part of the mtemal rating model.
In genernl, it ia preaumed that credit risk has significandy increased since inital recognition if the payments are more than 365 days past due.

A default on & financiel awset s when the counterparty fafls to make contrachial payments within 1 year of when they fall due. This definiion of default is determined by considering the business
ervironment in which entity operates and other macro-sconomic factora.

) Provision for expected credit losses
The company provides for sxpacted credit loss based on the following:

s} Expected credit loss for trade recevables under simplified approach

Tear ended 31 March 2024:

Ageing Less than & months | 6 months to 1 yoar 1-2 Years 2-3 years More tham 3 yours Total
Grosa oarTying aanount 20,06,17,333 1,47,55,374 67,72,951 24,16,577 85,33,698 23,30,95,96+4
Expecied Joss mate % 22.1% 100% 100% 160% 9%
Expected credit lossen (Loex allowance provision) 5 32.58,501.56 67,72,961.15 24,16,577.29 85,33,698.00 2,09,81,848
Carryi t of trade ivebles (et of impai t) 20,06,17,333 1,14,95,783 - - - 21,21,14,116
Year anded 31 Muroh 2023 -

Ageing Lesa than 6 montha | 6 months to 1 yaar 1-2 Tears 2-3 yoars Blore tham 3 years Total
Grosg carrying ameunt 18,51,25,983 1,65,90,061 65,40,805 6,566,193 35,55,899 21,64,78,900
Expeacted losm rate 0% 2% 100% 100% 1G0%: T¥%

T © Enied) ¥ sicn) 4,04,347 6540805 46,566,152 35,535,899 1,51,67 203

Carrying t of trude recelvables (nst of tnped } 18,51,28,983 1,61,85,714 ] - . 20,13,11,697
[ill] Reconclliation of Lyss all provish d et life-tlme expected loases- Loans and deposits
Reconciliation of loss allowance Rs.
Loss allowance on 1 April 2023 5,79,466
Changes in loss allowances 16,13.574
Loax allowancs on 31 March 20:24 21,93,040
[iv] Reconcilistlon of loss all provislon - Trade ivabl
Loas allowance on 1 Apni] 2023 151,867,203
Changes in loaa allowance 58,194,645

Loas allowance on 31 March 2024 2,09,81,848
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F its nod riak g {contd.]
Hote 33
Fi tal rigk Fs
(B3 Liquidity risk
Frudent liquidity risk implita maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the ilability of I } h an ad of d credit facilities to meet
obligaticns when due and to close out market positions. M i wlling of the pany’s liquidity position lcmnpnnng the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash
equivalenta on I]Ic basis of expected cash NMows. This ia generally carried ocut &t local level in the operati ies of the T in aceord, with practee and limits set by the goup. The
s Lgui pelicy involves prajecti cash flows in major currencies and considering rhe Iﬂel of liquid asaets pecessary to meet thess, monitoring balance ahest liquidity mtion
aga:nst mtemal ard external latery requil and ining debt Ii ing plans,
{it Finaneing arangements
The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Floating rate
Expiring within one year (cash credit I'ncilig} 2,10,00,000 5,10,00.000
The Cash Credit facilities may be drawn at any time required by the Comp under the d limits set by the Bank
fil} Magurities of finanicial fisbilives
‘The tables belcw mnalyse The ‘s fi iz liabilites into relevant maml'il:r groupmgs based on their contractual maturities for:
8} net and gross sattled derivative financia! instruments for which the contn are tal for an und ding of the tming «f the cash flows.

The amcurits disclosed in the table are the conractal undiscounted cash Nows, Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances &5 the impact of discounting is not significant,

= 1 itlaw of A lal Unbilities:
Lews than 12 months | More tham 1 yenr Total

31 March 2024

Hon-derivatives

Trade payables 262,49,919 & 26299919
Lenee linbilities 17,688,450 43,548 18,322,007
Other inancigl babilides 3.76,61,.265 2,862,745 3.79.44.010
Total non-derivative Uabibties 6,56,99,643 5.26,293 5.60.25.936

Lean thoo 13 mowthe | More than 1 year Total
31 Narch 2023
Hoa-deHoatives
Trade payablea 2,39,47,628 - 2,39.47 628
Leage linbilites 79,32,350 76,12,229 1,55,44,574
Other Ainancial Babilities 3,46,28,270 3,234,626 3,40 62 896
Total aon-derdvative Uabilitdes 6,65,08,247 79,445,950 T44.55.098
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Note 33
Financial instruments and risk management (contd.)
Market risk

{i) Foreign currency risk

The company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the
receivable in Foreign currency and payables in foreign currency. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency {INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable

foreign currency cash flows.

The company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows

31 March 2024
AED GBP Euro USD EwD
Financial assefs
Trade receivables - 10,81,627 - 2,21,94,521 2,07,54,309
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - s - 3,54,048 &
Net exposure to foreign currency risk - 10,81,627 - 2,18,40,473 2,07,54,309
31 March 2023
AED GBP Euroe UBD EwD
Financial assels
Trade receivables - 2,30,391 - 1,14,34,166 1,56,54,982
Financial Habilities
Trade payables 4 - - 18,69,582 5,23,621
Het exposure to foreign currency risk - 2,30,391 - 95,64,584 1,51,31,361
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or logs to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments
Impact on profit after tax

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
USD sensifivity
INR/USD Increases by 10% 21,84.047 9,56,458
INR/USD Decreases by 10% (21.84.047] {9,56.458)
KWD sensitivity
INR/KWD Increases by 10% 20,75,431 15,13.136
INR/KWD Decreases by 10% 20,75,431] {15,13,136)
Buro sensitivity

INR/Euro Increases by 10% - -

INR/Euro Decreases by 10% = =

GEP sensitivity
INR/GBPF Increases by 1% 1.08.163 23,039
INR/GBP Decreases by 10% (1,08,163) (23.039}

INR/GBP Increases by 10% = =

INR/GEP Decreases by 10% = =
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Note 34
Capital management

{a) Risk management

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to
+ safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for

other stakeholders, and

+ maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, The company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt {total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by

Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet),

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net debt 3,26,293 79,46,850
Total equity 42,83,91,504 37,28,80,638
Net debt to equity ratio 0.00 0.02
{b) Dividends

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

{i) Equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of Rs. 2.50 per fully paid up share (31 50,00,000 50,00,000

March 2022 of Rs. 2.50 per fully paid up share)

fii} Dividends not recognised ai the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of Rs.3 per fully paid
equity share for the year ended March 31, 2024, This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual

general meeting.
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Note 35
Employee Benefit Obligations

Fair valuation of investments in Equity and Debt instrizments

Under Ind AS financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI} are fair valued at each reporting date with
changes in fair value (net of deferred taxes) recogrised directy in other comprehensive income.

Re-measurements of post-employment benefit obligations
Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability/ asset which is recognised in other
comprehensive income, Congequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised in other comprehensive income under Ind AS instead of
the statement of profit and loss.

Other Comprehensive income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognized in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires
or permits otherwise. Itemns of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’ includes re-measurements of defined berefit plans and diminution in value of investments. The concept of other
Comprehensive Income did not exist under previous GAAP.

Retirement benefit plans
Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, gratnity and compensated absences.

Defined Contribution Flan
Eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both
employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees' salary. The Group's contribution to provident
fund is charged as expenses as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the
employees.

Defined Benefit Flans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for alum-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, and while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 26 days
salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability
for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation. The Company makes annual contributions to a funded gratuity scheme
administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

24.3. Long Term Compensated absences

A provision for leave encashment which is a defined benefit plan is made based on actvarial valvation. Actuarial gains and losses of defined e
benefit plars and long term compensated absences are recognized in the profit & loss account in the year of occurence.

Company's liability towards gratuity (funded), other retirement benefits and compensated absences are actuarially determined at each reporting
date using the projected unit credit method.
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the market yields on government
bonds deneminated in Indian Rupees. If the actual retumm on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be parhally offset by an increase in the return on the plan's
debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the morfality of plan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan'’s liability.
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Note 35
Employss Benefit Obligations
2.44. The principle assmmptions used for the purposes of actuarial valuations were as follows:
N As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 203

Gratuity
Discount Rate 5.97% 7.15%
Expected rate of salary increase 700% 7.50%
Attrition Rate 14.00% 14.00%
Ci ted Ab e Leave
Discount Rate 6.97% 7.15%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.50%

The estimates of future salary increases. Considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,

such as supply and demand in employment market.

Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these define benefit plans are as follows:

0 As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2004 2023
Gratuity
Current service cost 32,25 566 28,234,258
[nterest expense on DBO 15,42 447 1190057
Interest (income) on plan assets 13.62.991) (11,30,218)
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Actuarlal{zainy/Joss arising from changes in financial ptions (2,75,326) 12,55,935
Changes in demographic assmnptions
Acheari in}/ [ogs arising from jence adjustments 379444 584,123
Actuarial{rain}/toss on plan assets 277917 1.01,300
(Return) on plan assets {excluding interest income) *
Total 3787057 48,35,455
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 34,0502 28,94,098
Total remeasurements included in OCL 382,035 19,41 358
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's obligation in respect of the defined benefit is as follows:
5 Ag at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Gratuity
Present value of defined benefit obligation 251,065,200 23912313
Fair value of plan assets 2.07,01,581 1,85,00.120
Net iability arising from defined benefit oblization (funded) 4403621 44,03,184
Mov ts in the p t value of defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows:
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars o004 2023
Gratuity
Opening defined benefit obligation 2,29.12313 1,50,14 395
Current service cost 32,25 566 28.34.258
Interest cost 1542 447 11,590,057
Actuarial(gain) /loss arising from changes in financial jons (2,75.326) 12.55,935
Actuarial{gain}/loss arising from change in demoeraphic assumplions 3.79.444 =
Actuarial({gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments - 5.54.123
Benefits paid 126,79.241) {19,66,459)
Closing defined beneflt obLigation 2.51,05.203 2,2912.313
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Note 35
Employee Benefit Obligations
Movement in the fair value of plan assets in the carrent year was as follows:

tcul As at March 31, | As at March 31,

o 2024 2023

Gratuity
b) Reconctliation of Opening and Closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of Plan assets at beginning of the year 1.85,09.129 1.67.68.808
| Expected return on plan assets 13,62.991 11,30,218
Actuarial (gain)/lass {26,79.241) {19,66,459)
Employer contribution 37,86,619 26,77 862
Benefits Paid (2,77.917) {1,01.300)
Fair value of Plan asseks at Year end 2.07.01,561 1,85,09,129

The Company funds the cost of gratuity expected to be earned on a yearly basis to Life Insurance Corporation of India which manages the plan

asseks,

Significant actuarial assumphions for the determination of the defined obligation are the discount rate and expected salary increase (inflation
rate}. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occuring at the

end of the reporting period.

As at March 31, | Ao at March ¥,

Particulars 2024 2003

Discount Rate
Discount rate + 0.5% basis points 7.47% 7.65%
Discount rate - 0.5% basis points 6.47% 6.65%
obligation would:
decrease by 15.61.982) {4.85,458)
increase by' 5,90.538 586,555
Escalation rate
increase by' 0.5% basis points 7.5% B.0%
decrease by 0.5% basis points 6.5% 7.0%
obligation would:
increase by' 488 668 509,561
decrease by {4,82.366) {4,27.941)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual changes in the de Fined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the

change in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated since the project
unit credit methed at the end of each reporting period, which is the same as that applied in cakulating the defined benefit obligation liability

recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the metheds and assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from previous year
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Hote 36
Begment information

{a] Dx 1ption of seg ts and pri

ipal activities

The company's Chiel operations decision maker [CODM| examines the company’s performance both from a product and

geographic perspective and has identified two reportable

of its busi

The CODM primarily uses a measure of asgments results [net of segment revenue and expenses] to assess the performance of the

operating segments.

(b) Segment resulia

Consulting Income Trading Income
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tetal segment result
External sales 69,13,62,.848 €2,95,39,682 51,881 6,02,918
Unallocable Corporate Income 2.13,.30,783 1,91,20,331 - -
Total Revenue 71,26,93,631 54,86,60,012 51,881 6,02,918
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - - 50,627 5,25,351
Employee benefits expense 40,8437 410 33,76,03,406 - -
Unallocated Finance Costs 10,51,882 32,06,725 -
Unallocated Other expenaes 20,33,91,228 19,86,22,137 - -
Depreciation 1,80,40,463 1.73,57.270 - -
Profit before incoms tax 68,17,72,648 9,18,70.476 1,254 77367
(c) Segment revenue
The sepment revenue is measured in the
Consulting Incoms Trading Income
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
[ndia 58,12,75,532 31,14,49,866 51,881 6,02,918
Kurwait 4,84,84,445 7.71,22,563 - -
Others 6,16,02,871 4.09.67,252 - -
Total seg 13 69,13.62,845 62,95,39,662 51,851 6,02,918
Disclosure of revenue with single customer more than 3%
Consulting Income Trading Income
Customers
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bharat Heavy Electricala Limited 5.62,74,670 3,60,87,763 - =
| Hindustan Unilever Limited 4,54,35,821 = - -
Ultratech Cement Lirnited 4,49,77.244 = 5 =
The Kuwait Qil Company 3,57.74,681 4,57,71,911 - -
Vedanta Limited 3,31,65,775 2,86,74,713 - -
fAntes USA 3,06,28,000 - - -
ArcelorMittal Nippon Steel India Limited 2,75,55,765 = = =
Dr. Reddys Laboratories Limited 1,72,55,581 - - 2
Chol dalam MS G ] Insurance
Company Ltd 2,51,05,016 1,78,37.,700 - £

(d) Segment assets

Segment assets are meaaured in the same

March 31, 2024

Mnrch 31, 2023 |

Segment Name Sepment Mon current sassts Bsgment Non current
assato onasts assets

Consulting 40,98,27.095 5,79,85,718 34,79,35,960 10,57.98.892 |
Trading
Total segment asasta 40,98.27,095 579,858,718 34,79,35,960 10,67,98.892]
Unallocated:
Inveatments - 1,16,58,606 = 16.46.309
Deferred tax assets - 1,38,25,000 - 1.22.16,000
Current Tax z 7.45,95,687 - 5.23.45,085
Total assets s per tha balance sheet 40.98,27.095 15,80,75,011 34,79,35,960 17.20,06.286

* Qther than deferred taxes and current taxes assets
Investments held by the company are not considered to be segment assets
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Hote 36
Begmoent mformation

{e]) Segment Babilities
Segment Habilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabilitizs are allocated based
on the operations of the segment,

March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
Segment Name Segment Non current Segment Non current
Unhilities Habilities Habilitien lishilitisn
Consulting 12,56,42,256 1,35,85,601 12,26,19,766 2,31,07,217
Trading 2,82,745 > 3,334,626 =
Total linhilitics as per the balance sheet 12,59,25,001 1,35,85,601 12,39,%4,391 2,31,07,217

Note 37
Corporate socinl responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2012 (“the Act®), a company, mesting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least
2% of its average net profit computed as mandated by the Act for the immediately preceding three financial years on CSR
activities. The areas of CSR activities that we have chosen to spend on are the areas of protection of promoting education ;
promoting healthears including preventive healthcare, The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year
on these actividea which are specified in Schedule VI of the Act. The gross amount required te be spent by the Company during
the year is R9.12,65,348/- and there was no amount unspent during the year.

Amount spent during the year on : 2023-24

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash
1. Conetruction /acquisiton of any asset - -
2. On purpoeses other than (1) above 12,70,000 -

Amount spent during the year on : 2022-23

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash
1. Comstruction facquisition of any asaet - -
2. On purposes cther than {1} above 10,63,000 -
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Notes forming part of the financial atatements for the year ¢nded March 31, 2024

Note 38
Additional latory inf " quired by Scheduls II

{il Detalls of benami property held
Ho proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition| Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets

The Company has no berrowings from banks on the basis of sscurity of current assets, The quarterly returns or
statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

{idi) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defanlter by any bank or financial institation or government or any
government authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companiss

The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Aet, 2013 or Companies Act,
1956,

(v} Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layera prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

{vi] Compliance with approved ach [s] of arrar t:

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an aceounting impact on current or
previous financial year.

(vil] Utiliaation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or investad funds to any other person{s) or entitylies), inchuding foreign
entities ([ntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiariea) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not recefved any fund from any personjs| or entityiies], including foreign entities (Funding Party]
with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatspever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ulimate Beneficiariea) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

[viil) Undisclosed income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments
urider the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

{ix] Details of erypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
(x] Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property '

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets] or intangible
assets or both during the current or previous year.

[xi} Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the atatatory period.

(xi) Loans and advances

The company has not granted any loans in the nature of loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoetors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and related parties, that are peyable on demand or without apecifying any
terms or period of repayment.

Note 39: Comparative figures
Comparative figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's
classification/ disclosure,

Note 40: Rounding off
All figures in the financial statements and related notes are rounded off to nearest lakh,
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